_"\

Earth Negotiations Bull ti

A Reportl ng Servicefor Environment and Devel opment Negotiations
On-lineat http://www.iisd.ca/linkages/csd/enrexpertl/index.html

Vol. 5 No. 143

Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development

Tuesday, 7 March 2000

AD HOC INTERGOVERNMENTAL GROUP OF
EXPERTS ON ENERGY AND SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT HIGHLIGHTS:
MONDAY, 6 MARCH 2000

The Ad Hoc Open-Ended I ntergovernmental Group of Expertson
Energy and Sustainable Devel opment, established by the UN General
Assembly to prepare for the ninth session of the Commission on
Sustainable Development (CSD-9), met at UN Headquartersin New
York. The Expert Group considered organizational matters, the Secre-
tary-General’s Report, the results of the World Energy Assessment,
and held apanel discussion on global energy trends, financing, invest-
ments, sustai nable energy and sustainabl e devel opment.

ORGANIZATIONAL MATTERS

CSD Chair Choi Seok-young (Republic of Korea) opened the first
meeting of the Expert Group. Delegates el ected, by acclamation,
Mohammed Reza Salamat (Iran) as Co-Chair of the Expert Group.
Following asecret ballot, Irene Freudenschuss Reichl (Austria) was
also elected Co-Chair. Marcio Nunes (Brazil) and Jaroslav Marousek
(Czech Republic) were el ected as Vice-Chairs. The el ection of another
Vice-Chair was postponed pending nomination from the African
Group. Ontheballot, NIGERIA, speaking for the G-77/CHINA, said
that political issues should not intrudein an expert process. Stressing
that nomination of candidates should be settled within regional
groups, he said the voting should not set a precedent for future meet-
ings.

Co-Chair Salamat said the work of the Expert Group should be
based on constructive dialogue to enhance mutual understanding and
concerns on energy within the context of sustainable development.
Noting that anumber of issues could be addressed by the Expert
Group, Co-Chair Freudenschuss Reichl said that by settling afew
questions, the Group could make progress and send astrong message
to Rio+10 that progress on sustai nabl e devel opment continuesto bea
real priority and is possible. The Expert Group then adopted the
Agendaand Programme of Work (E/CN.17/ESD/2000/1).

PRESENTATION OF REPORTS

JoAnne DiSano, Director of the UN Division for Sustainable
Development, introduced the reports of the UN Secretary-General on
National Submissions (E/CN.17/ESD/2000/2) and Energy and
Sustainable Development; Key Issues (E/CN.17/ESD/2000/3). She
outlined the issues covered in the National Submissions Report:
accessto energy services, renewable sources, efficiency, cleaner fuel
technologies, liberalization of the energy sector, finance and invest-
ment, economic instruments, and international cooperation. The areas

covered in the Report on Energy and Sustai nable Development Issues
are: energy access, rural energy, financing the energy sector, energy
efficiency, advanced energy technologies, renewabl e energy, energy
and transport, and international cooperation.

Professor Jose Goldemberg,WEA Editorial Board, outlined the
elements of the Assessment: why the present energy systemis not
sustainable; the need for a paradigm shift to sustainability; available
solutions; future scenarios; issues and options; and current work. He
compared the energy production and consumption profiles of the
devel oped and devel oping countries, noting that consumptionin
industrialized countriesis 5 tonnes of ail equivalent (TOE) per capita
as compared with 0.85 TOE per capitain developing countries. He
underlined theimportance of : policy making, aframework for the
continuation of market reforms, setting accurate pricesignals, remova
of subsidiesto fossil fuel energy, removing obstaclesto the use of new
technol ogies, and supporting technological |eadership and capacity
building in devel oping countries.

ANTIGUA & BARBUDA noted that CO, was at the bottom of the

list of the Human Disruption Index (HDI), and questioned whether
this should result in achange of focusin activities. Goldemberg
responded that the index indicates the rati o between anthropogenic
over natural emissions, rather than absolutelevels. He noted that CO,
emissionsarelikely to doublein the next 30-40 years. The RUSSIAN
FEDERATION questioned the ability of market mechanismsto equi-
tably address the needs of people without accessto commercial
energy, and highlighted the potential for subsidies. Goldemberg
acknowledged the problem of relying solely on markets, and under-
lined the need for government intervention to ensure the right condi-
tions. Noting theinitial value of subsidies, he emphasized that they
should not be permanent asthey distort markets. BRAZIL requested
further elaboration of the investment requirementsfor the WEA's
“ecologically driven scenario.” Goldemberg emphasized theimpor-
tance of locally available resources, therole of private capital, and
foreign investor guarantees. He outlined the potential of biomassand
liquid petroleum gas for devel oping countries.

GENERAL STATEMENTS

SAMOA, speaking on behalf of the ALLIANCE OF SMALL
ISLAND STATES (AOSIS), underlined the need for international
energy cooperation to assist developing countriesin providing
adequate energy servicesto all sectors of the population, to facilitate
poverty aleviation aswell asto devel op policiesthat enhancethe
economic, social and environmental aspects of energy production and
use. The G-77/CHINA stressed the need for a balanced processin
which devel oping country experts participate. He outlined the critical

Thisissue of the Earth Negotiations Bulletin © <enb@iisd.org> iswritten and edited by Angela Churie <angela@iisd.org>, Peter Doran <pfdoran@hotmail.com>, and Jonathon
Hanks <jon.hanks@iiiee.lu.se>. The Editor is Pamela Chasek, Ph.D. <pam@iisd.org> and the Managing Editor is Langston James "Kimo" Goree <kimo@iisd.org>. Digital
editing by LeilaMead <leila@interport.net>. The Sustaining Donorsof the Bulletin are The NetherlandsMinistry of Foreign Affairs, the Government of Canada (through CIDA),
theUnited States (through USAID), the SwissAgency for Environment, Forestsand L andscape (SAEFL), the United Kingdom Department for I nternational Development (DFID)
and the European Commission (DG-ENV) General Support for the Bulletin during 2000 is provided by the the German Federal Ministry of Environment (BMU) and the German
Federal Ministry of Development Cooperation (BMZ), the Danish Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the Ministry of Environment of Austria, the Ministries of Foreign Affairs and
Environment of Norway, the Ministry of Foreign Affairsand Ministry of Environment of Finland, the Government of Sweden, the Government of Australia, the United Nations
Development Programme (UNDP), the Global Environment Facility (GEF) and BP Amoco. The Bulletin can be contacted by e-mail at <enb@iisd.org> and at tel: +1-212-644-
0204; fax: +1-212-644-0206. 11 SD can be contacted by e-mail at <info@iisd.ca> and at 161 Portage Avenue East, 6th Floor, Winnipeg, ManitobaR3B 0Y 4, Canada. The opinions
expressed in the Earth Negotiations Bulletin are those of the authors and do not necessarily reflect the views of 11SD and other funders. Excerpts from the Earth Negotiations
Bulletin may beused in non-commercial publicationsonly and only with appropriate academic citation. For permission to use thismaterial in commercial publications, contact the
Managing Editor. Electronic versionsof the Bulletin aresent to e-mail distribution listsand can befound onthe LinkagesWWW server at http://www.iisd.callinkages/. Thesatellite
image was taken above New York ©2000 The Living Earth, Inc. http://livingearth.com. For information on the Earth Negotiations Bulletin, send e-mail to <enb@iisd.org>.




Tuesday, 7 March 2000

Vol. 5 No. 143 Page 2

issuesfor devel oping countriesincluding technology transfer, capacity
building, accessto financial resources, private investment in energy
infrastructure and rel ated services, debt overhang, and poverty.

PORTUGAL, on behalf of the EU, stressed the need for strong
policy decisionsto, inter alia, secure accessto aff ordabl e and appro-
priate energy servicesfor al, limit greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions,
make best use of energy resources, limit waste problemswith negative
environmental and health impacts, and ensure high energy efficiency
and increased use of renewables. The US urged that attention be given
to energy efficiency, renewables and the enabling conditionsfor
investment. CANADA supported further study of the linkages
between energy access and poverty alleviation, health, education,
nutrition and gender. She said governments could encourage the
private sector by establishing market conditions that ensure transpar-
ency and fairnessfor all participants, and provide astable basisto
encourage investment. She also noted the safety record of Canada's
CANDU nuclear plant.

NEPAL highlighted lack of accessto financial resourcesasakey
constraint regarding renewabl e energy technol ogies, noting the need
for alegal and institutional framework that promotes private participa
tion, foreign direct investment, and accessto rural credit. NORWAY
noted the role of the Dialogue Process between energy producing and
consuming countries and called on CSD-9 to: improve understanding
on sustainabl e energy development; build on the work of the OECD
and |EA; and identify appropriate options, focussing on renewable
energy sources and energy efficiency policiesand technologies. The
FAO underlined the vital role of energy in agricultural production and
food security. INDONESIA emphasized therole of UN Regional
Economic Commissions, appropriate pricing policies, technology
transfer, international cooperation, and effective stakehol der involve-
ment. CHINA called on developed countriesto provide new and addi-
tional resources, including technology transfer with preferential
conditions, noting that devel oped countries had not honored their
UNCED commitments.

AUSTRALIA described the essential role of areliable supply of
competitively priced energy. On global development, he said the bulk
of finance for energy serviceswould come from private business. The
FORMER YUGOSLAV REPUBLIC OF MACEDONIA said the
planning of future development inindustry and publiclifewas
extremely difficult in post-socialist countries. VENEZUELA
described the extension of anatural gas programmeto private vehicles,
the development of an alternative fuel with advantages over coal, and
the promulgation of |egislation to encourage new national and interna-
tional private capital in pursuit of greater efficiency. SWITZERLAND
supported limiting the prioritiesto be addressed by the Expert Group.

PANEL DISCUSSION

Mohammed Alipour-Jeddi, OPEC, gave an overview of past
performancein the energy sector, the energy outlook to 2020, and
outlined possible policy issues. He noted that projections using the
OPEC World Energy Model (OWEM) show continued increasesin
worldwide energy demand with increasesacross all fuel types.
Regarding the Kyoto Protocol, he said that arguments that OPEC can
avoid revenue losses by sustaining higher oil pricesare not feasible,
adding that revenue losses for OPEC countriesarelikely to be high.
He stressed the vulnerability of OPEC countriesto the adverse effects
of theimplementation of GHG mitigation measures.

In her presentation, Kristi Varangu, International Energy Agency:
highlighted thelink between energy and climate change; outlined
potential energy demand levelsusing abusiness-as-usual (BAU)
scenario; examined alternative demand scenariosin the context of
climate change policies; and underlined theimpact of energy subsi-
dies. After presentingaBAU scenario, she highlighted the environ-
mental implications, and emphasized the importance of the transport
sector. Presenting an alternative “Kyoto case” scenario, she noted the
potential benefits associated with energy efficiency, clean coal, and
Kyoto Protocol instruments such asthe Clean Devel opment Mecha-

nism, joint implementation and emissionstrading. She highlighted the
potential benefits of removing energy subsidies, noting the findings of
astudy of eight countries, which suggest that the removal of subsidies
would result in a13% reduction in energy consumption, a 1% increase
in GDP and a16% decreasein CO, emissions. Noting that current
trends are not heading in the right direction, she underlined the polit-
ical constraintsin introducing effective policies.

Mark Radka, UNEP, outlined the environmental consequencesthat
track energy trends, drawing on UNEP’s Global Environment Outlook
2000. He said that an analysis of energy-related environmental trends
demonstrated that the continued poverty of the majority of the earth’s
inhabitants and excessive consumption by the minority are thetwo
major causes of environmental degradation. He also noted aglobal
survey conducted by the International Council of Scientific Unions,
which found that poor governance ranked higher than the loss of biodi-
versity and waste disposal among the major environmental issues
identified by leading scientists.

Thomas Johansson, UNDP, emphasi zed the positive impacts of
accessto energy on addressing poverty, job creation and health. Noting
that current approaches are not effective, he supported the WEA and
UNDP analyses on possible energy futures based on increased effi-
ciency, renewable energy and new technol ogies, and underlined the
need for government intervention. He said effective policiesfor
energy efficiency haveimportant national and global benefits, and
emphasized the need for capacity buildinginall countries. He
supported the call for areduction in energy subsidies, and noted the
potential for developing countriesto “leap frog” the technological
mistakes of developed countries.

Alan Miller, Global Environment Facility (GEF) presented an
overview of GEF activitiesrelated to climate and energy. Recognizing
the growing demand for capacity building as an el ement of GEF
financing and the need for awider range of partners, he said that the
GEF wasin the process of devel oping a capacity-building project with
UNDPto review climate and biodiversity related needs and was
expanding relationshipswith regional banks. The GEF was also facili-
tating NGO accessto resources through medium size grants.

The ensuing discussion addressed, inter alia, thefeasibility of
removing energy subsidies, how thereal measure of per capitaincome
compareswith thereal cost of energy for devel oped and devel oping
countries, the consegquences of adopting measuresto internalizethe
cost of carbon emissions and reasonsfor the declining trend in World
Bank activities on sustainable energy.

IN THE CORRIDORS

Several observers expressed relief after initial tensionsthat
pervaded the opening session subsided following apositive vote to
elect the WEOG-nominated candidate. However, considerabl e debate
continued within the CSD NGO communty regarding an articlein the
NGO journal published Friday, that called onthe Austrian candidate to
reconsider her candidacy. A number of NGOs objected to the article,
which they felt, implicitly associated NGOs with opposition to the
candidate. Some NGOs commented that the article might jeopardize
opportunitiesfor constructive dial ogue with the government represen-
tatives.

THINGSTO LOOK FOR TODAY
EXPERT GROUP: The Expert Group will continuediscussionon
key issuesin Conference Room 2 from 10:00 am to 6:00 pm.
WORLD ENERGY ASSESSMENT: Therewill beabriefing on
the World Energy Assessment processat 6:15 pm in Conference Room
2. Professor Jose Goldemberg, Chairman WEA, will lead the discus-
sion, describing opportunitiesfor stakehol der involvement.



